
 

 

 
Agenda for an Extraordinary Virtual Meeting of 
Council 
Wednesday, 24th June, 2020, 6.00 pm 
 
 To: All elected Members of the Council; Honorary Aldermen 

 
Venue: Online via the Zoom App. All Councillors and registered 
speakers will have been sent an appointment with the meeting 
link. 

 
Contact: Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager; 

01395 517541; email showl@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 
Issued Monday, 15 June 2020 
 
Important - this meeting will be conducted online and recorded by Zoom only. 

Please do not attend Blackdown House.  

Members are asked to follow the Protocol for Remote Meetings  
 
This meeting is being recorded by EDDC for subsequent publication on the Council’s 
website and will be streamed live to the Council’s Youtube Channel at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw 
 
Public speakers are now required to register to speak – for more information please use the 
following link: https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-
meetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content  
 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Extraordinary Virtual Meeting of the Council of the District of East Devon on 
Wednesday, 24th June, 2020 at 6.00 pm 
 
You are called upon to attend the above meeting to be held online. It is proposed that the 
matters set out on the agenda below will be considered at the meeting and resolution or 
resolutions passed as the Council considers expedient. 

 
Yours faithfully 

Chief Executive 
 
 
1   Public speaking   

 Information on public speaking is available online 
 

East Devon District Council 

Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 

Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 HONITON 

Tel: 01404 515616 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

page 1

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/protocol-for-virtual-meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content


2   Apologies   
 

3   Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 
declarations of interest 
 

4   Governance Arrangements and committee appointments for the remainder 
of the Civic Year (2020/21)  (Pages 4 - 18) 

 Report by the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer to enable the Council to 
formalise its governance arrangements for the remainder of the civic year 
following the cancellation of the Annual Meeting due to COVID-19 and the 
change in the ruling group of the Council.  

 

The report recommends changes to the Constitution, seeks confirmation of the 
Committees and their size and terms of reference and agreement to the scheme 
of delegations. There is a specific requirement to agree the composition of the 
Standards Committee and Housing Review Board and to confirm the 
appointment of the Independent Person.  

 

It deals with the allocation of seats on overview, regulatory and other 
committees to different political groups in accordance with the political 
balance of the Council along with the councillor appointments to committees 
together with the appointment of their Chairs and Vice-Chairs. 

 

RECOMMENDED that Council 

PART A 

1. Approves the amended Constitution to determine the committee 
structure, their size and terms of reference and the scheme of 
delegations. 

 

PART B 

2. Confirms the Conservative Group as the formal opposition. 

 

PART C 

3. Approves the allocation to different political groups of seats on the 
overview, regulatory and other committees as follows; 

 

 

Democratic Alliance 
Group 

 

24 members 40% 46 seats 

Conservative Group 

 
20 members 33.33% 38 seats 

page 2

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/


Independent 
Progressive Group 

 

7 members 11.67% 13 seats 

The Independents  

 
5 members 8.33% 10 seats 

Cranbrook Voice 

 
3 members 5% 6 seats 

 
Independent 

 

 
1 

 
1.67% 

 
0 seats 

TOTALS 60 100 113 
 

4. Approves the allocation of seats on individual overview, scrutiny, 
regulatory and other committees as set out in Appendix 1. 

 

PART D 

5. Agrees the Membership of the Standards Committee and Housing 
Review Board (as detailed in Part D of this report) and approves an 
extension of the appointment of the Independent Person for a further 
year. 

 

PART E 

6. Approves the appointments of Councillors to committees as set out 
in the table in Appendix 2. 

 

PART F 

7. Approves the appointments of the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of the 
committees as set out in Appendix 3. 

 

 

Decision making and equalities 
 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

 
 

page 3

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


 
  

Report to: Council 

 

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 24th June 2020 

Public Document: Yes 

Exemption: None 

Review date for 
release 

None  

 

Subject: Governance Arrangements and committee appointments for the 
remainder of the Civic Year (2020/21) 

Purpose of report: 
Report by the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer to enable the 
Council to formalise its governance arrangements for the remainder of 
the civic year following the cancellation of the Annual Meeting due to 
COVID-19 and the change in the administration of the Council.  
 
The report recommends changes to the Constitution, seeks confirmation 
of the Committees and their size and terms of reference and agreement 
to the scheme of delegations. There is a specific requirement to agree 
the composition of the Standards Committee and Housing Review 
Board and to confirm the appointment of the Independent Person.  
 
It deals with the allocation of seats on overview, regulatory and 
other committees to different political groups in accordance with the 
political balance of the Council along with the councillor 
appointments to committees together with the appointment of their 
Chairs and Vice-Chairs. 
 

Recommendation: 

 

 

 

 

 

That Council; 
 
PART A 

1. Approves the amended Constitution to determine the 
committee structure, their size and terms of reference and 
the scheme of delegations. 

 
PART B 

2. Confirms the Conservative Group as the formal opposition. 
 
PART C 

3. Approves the allocation to different political groups of seats 
on the overview, regulatory and other committees as follows; 
 

 
Democratic Alliance 

Group 
 

24 members 40% 46 seats 

Conservative Group 
 

20 members 33.33% 38 seats 

Independent 
Progressive Group 

 

7 members 11.67% 13 seats 

The Independents  
 

5 members 8.33% 10 seats 

page 4

Agenda Item 4



 
  

Cranbrook Voice 
 

3 members 5% 6 seats 

 
Independent 

 

 
1 

 
1.67% 

 
0 seats 

TOTALS 60 100 113 

 
4. Approves the allocation of seats on individual overview, 

scrutiny, regulatory and other committees as set out in 
Appendix 1. 

 
PART D 

5. Agrees the Membership of the Standards Committee and 
Housing Review Board (as detailed in Part D of this report) 
and approves an extension of the appointment of the 
Independent Person for a further year. 

 
PART E 

6. Approves the appointments of Councillors to committees as 
set out in the table in Appendix 2. 

 
PART F 

7. Approves the appointments of the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of 
the committees as set out in Appendix 3. 
 

Reason for 
recommendation: 

 

To ensure that the Council’s governance framework reflects the changes 
to the political balance within the Council and to enable certain of the 
appointments that would have happened at Annual Council to be agreed 
for the remainder of the civic year.  

 

Officers: 
 
 

Mark Williams, Chief Executive 

Henry Gordon Lennox, Monitoring Officer 

 Choose Portfolio Holder. 

Financial 
implications: 
 

There are no direct financial implications arising from the 
recommendations in this report. 

Legal implications: The legal position is detailed in the report. 

Equalities impact: Low Impact 

 

Climate change:  Low Impact 
 

Risk: Low Risk 

Links to background 
information: 
 

Revised Constitution 
JNC Conditions of Service – October 2016 

Link to Council Plan: Outstanding Council and Council Services 
Outstanding Place and Environment 

 

page 5

http://www.eastdevon.gov.uk/papers/council/240620bpEGMcouncilconstitution.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Chf%20Exec%20Handbook%2013Oct16.pdf
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/new-council-plan/index.htm


 
  

Part A – Adopting the Constitution (Recommendation 1) 

1. Each year the Council adopts the Constitution thereby confirming the Committee structure and 
the size and terms of reference of the Committees as set out in Articles 7, 8, 9, and 10 (as 
amended) as well as confirming the scheme of delegations. 
 

2. The detail below contains the main proposed amendments to the Constitution and the 
rationale behind the changes. There are a few minor typographically and formatting 
changes that are not detailed but are in track changes in the draft – the link for which is in 
the background links.   
 
Policy Framework and Budget (p16 & 17) 

3. This determines what plans and strategies must be approved by Full Council. The list has 
been updated to reflect changes to the names of some of the plans / strategies and also to 
delete reference to those that are now obsolete or which are covered elsewhere (e.g. 
required to be determined as part of the budget approval) and are therefore duplicated. 
None of those changes have any real effect but are to bring the list up to date. The list 
already includes the in-year decision to reserve the Car Parking Strategy for Council to 
decide. The only substantive change is to include the Commercialisation Strategy as it is 
appropriate for this to be a Council owned strategy. 
 

4. The budget has had reference to the Council Tax base removed which is instead included 
within the Terms of Reference of Cabinet. This is because it is a technical exercise and also 
because there is a very short time period from the date from when the figures can be 
prepared to the date when the approval must be obtained so that it feeds into the budget 
setting process. Full Council doesn’t usually meet during the timeframe while Cabinet does.  
 

5. Finally, reference to Food Enforcement Service Plan has been removed as this is properly 
something that now sits under the Council’s Regulatory Enforcement and Prosecution 
Policy which was adopted by Cabinet in April 2017.  
 
Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 

6. The JNC Conditions of Service for Chief Officers contains advice in relation to the 
arrangements that should be in place and a model procedure to be followed in relation to 
the potentially complex and lengthy process of dealing with disciplinary matters against 
Chief / Statutory Officers. A copy of the Conditions of Service from October 2016 containing 
the detail of the arrangements that should be in place and model procedure can be found in 
the background links.  
 

7. While the Council’s framework was legally permissible it did not replicate the arrangements 
that are advised to be in place. The introduction of a five member Investigating and 
Disciplinary Committee as a standing committee - replacing the Disciplinary Panel – is the 
main change to remedy this. It will investigate sufficiently serious complaints (covered in the 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules) and where appropriate make recommendations in 
relation to disciplinary action as well as having authority to suspend when appropriate. 
Depending on the disciplinary action proposed the Chief Officer has a right of appeal to the 
Employment Appeal Committee. 
 

8. Both the Investigating and Disciplinary and Employment Appeals Committees should have 
at least one member from Cabinet on them and it is recommended that the Chair of the 
Investigating and Disciplinary Committee is the Deputy Leader given the potential for a 
conflict. Councillors sitting on the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee are not 
permitted to sit on the Employment Appeals Committee and vice-versa to ensure 
separation between the roles and a fair process. Substitutes are required to ensure political 
balance. 

page 6



 
  

 
9. The Terms of Reference section has been updated to include this committee and amended 

in relation to the Employment Appeals Committee to make clear the different 
responsibilities of the two. There are consequential amendments throughout to reflect these 
changes.  
 

10. Finally there are amendments to reflect that members are not involved in employment 
matters outside of Chief Officers and only Full Council can approve their appointment, 
dismissal and redundancy. The Chief Officer posts do not currently align with the Statutory 
Officer posts, which they should as the Statutory Officers are all on Chief Officer terms and 
conditions. Article 11 has been amended to correct this.    
 

11. HR have been consulted on these changes as far as necessary to do so. 
 
Removal of reference to Deputy Chief Executive and officer delegated powers 

12. Following the redundancy of the Deputy Chief Executive references to the post have been 
deleted throughout and revisions made to the Management Team structure chart in Part 7. 
There are consequential amendments throughout to deal with this.  
 

13. The delegated authorities that sat with that post have been redistributed to go with the 
Senior Officer now responsible for the management of the Service - the delegations in 
relation to planning have moved to the Chief Executive while the property related ones have 
moved to the Strategic Lead (Finance) but with reference to the relevant Service Lead 
included as well, as that is our convention. The Strategic Lead (Finance) delegations have 
been revised to make them clearer and more in line with how the other delegations are 
expressed. 
 

14. In terms of other amendments to the delegations; 
 

a. The General Provisions have been amended to remove reference to the Deputy 
Chief Executive from No.7 (general authority for the Chief Executive to exercise any 
of the powers in the scheme of delegation) and replaced with the Monitoring Officer 
but only when the Chief Executive is absent. This simply provides the safety net of 
having officers able to act if necessary.   

b. Confirmation of who the deputy Monitoring Officer and S.151 Officer are has been 
moved / added to the General Provisions section simply for clarity.  

c. In the planning delegations (No.11) a reference to a paragraph in the NPPF has 
been updated to reflect the same paragraph in the new NPPF. Wording has been 
added to clarify that only material departures need to go to committee. In respect of 
applications where EDDC has a financial interest, this has been amended so that it 
only needs to be reported to committee when any of the comments received conflict 
with the officer recommendation – there have been applications taken to committee 
where everyone is in agreement, which seems illogical.  

d. Authority has been given to the Monitoring Officer to update the constitution when 
required to reflect changes to the membership, portfolios / portfolio holders / 
assistant portfolio holders and committee changes. Given that Council is effectively 
only rubber stamping these it seems prudent to avoid having to wait for Council to 
effect changes that Council would simply approve. 

e. In relation to Community Right to Bid decisions, this has been amended so that it is 
the responsibility of the Service Lead (Place, Assets & Commercialisation) with the 
right of appeal (which was to the Deputy Chief Executive) being to the Strategic Lead 
(Governance and Licensing).  

f. In Strategic Lead (Finance) the ability to review decisions made under the Council 
Tax Reduction scheme has been added. The scope for fraud investigations has 

page 7



 
  

been widened to cover all Council services. The awarding of relief has been clarified 
to make it clear that it can be given in line with Council policy. 

g. In the Strategic Lead (Housing, Health and Environment) the appointment of 
authorised officers under the Aircraft Regulations has been revised to avoid having 
to name individuals and then revise the Constitution when they change. A delegation 
in relation to carrying out climate change related activities in support of the Climate 
Change Strategy / Action Plan and Cabinet decisions has been included. 

 
Rules of procedure 

15. In light of recent events it is considered appropriate that the Council should formally agree 
at the Annual Meeting which party is the formal opposition. This is because it determines 
which party is entitled to the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee. There is an amendment to 
the Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny to reflect this.  
 

16. Further, the calling of the recent Extraordinary Meetings has highlighted an inconsistency. It 
is expressed that the business at EGMs should be ‘limited to a single item in the form of a 
motion…’. Reference to all business being in the form of a motion is inappropriate because 
of the nature of what that business may be and the expectation of motions having 
proposers and seconders. The recent example of the election of a Leader and where 
Council resolves to hold an EGM demonstrate why the rule doesn’t work particularly well. 
Equally, if the Monitoring Officer calls a meeting then the meeting is likely to be considering 
a report from the Monitoring Officer and not a motion. So Rules 3.1 and 3.2 have been 
amended to make it clear that if five members make a requisition to call an EGM then it 
must contain the motion to be considered and that generally the meeting will be limited to a 
single item of business which may or may not be in the form of a motion – this latter aspect 
will essentially be dependent on how / why the meeting is called. 
 
Assistant Portfolio Holders 

17. Following the Leader’s appointment of Assistant Portfolio Holders during his acceptance 
speech, a new section has been included within Article 6 to cover their role and how it 
relates to the Cabinet. Further amendments have been made to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (Part 4.5) and the Protocol for Relationships between Members and 
Officers (Part 5.4) to make clear the delineation in responsibilities between the Executive 
(Cabinet) and the Assistant Portfolio Holders.  
 
Portfolio Teams 

18. The Cabinet had the ability to set up Think Tanks to assist in the work of the Portfolio 
Holders (as detailed in Article 6.09). These have been changed to be called Portfolio 
Teams and there are amendments to reflect that these will be cross-party, be up to 15 
members on the basis of the political balance as far as possible and that delegated 
authority given to the Monitoring Officer to work with Group Leaders to constitute the 
membership of the Teams rather than it being a matter for Council to approve.  
 
Lead Members 

19. The new administration is of the view that the role of Lead Member needs review and is in 
an event likely to be superseded by an effective Portfolio Team approach as well as the 
work of the Governance Review Working Party. While there is likely to be interest in a small 
number of members supporting the ongoing work of the Council in relation to relevant but 
discrete areas, it is not appropriate to determine which ones they should be at this time and 
in light of the timely need to reset our governance framework. It is accepted that should 
there be an urgent need to reintroduce these roles in the short term, then this could happen 
with a properly considered report to Council. The changes are therefore to remove Lead 
Member roles at this time.  
 

page 8



 
  

Development Management Committee  
20. This is now to be called the Planning Committee. There are consequential amendments 

throughout to reflect this. 
 

21. Reference to it having the responsibility for determining Local Development Orders has 
been added as the Constitution was silent on this matter and with a number coming forward 
in the near future it was deemed appropriate to make it clear which Committee’s 
responsibility it is.  
 
Scrutiny call-in procedure 

22. The call-in procedure has been revised to remove the requirement for members to confirm 
that they have considered the matters that were listed in paragraph 4(iv). It is not 
considered that that requirement added any real benefit and was effectively more of a 
technicality than anything else. The requirement to state the reasons for the call-in is 
retained however.  
 
Panels and Forums 

23. The quorum for the Panels and Forums has been reduced from 4 to 3 due to problems 
convening certain meetings due to lack of attendees. 
 
Financial Regulations 

24. In Appendix 1 – Schedule of Financial Authority to Officers, there is an addition in relation to 
the authority to settle insurance claims. It requires that any claim over £30k is only settled in 
consultation with the Strategic Lead (Finance) or Strategic Lead (Governance and 
Licensing). This was essentially happening but wasn’t clearly stated anywhere.  
 
Members Code of Conduct 

25. Cllr Bailey (as the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services and Chair of the Member 
Development Working Party) requested that the requirement for equalities training be 
added as mandatory training. Paragraph 1.9 now includes this although it will only take 
effect from the next regular election. 
 
Code of Good Practice for Councillors and Officers dealing with planning matters 

26. Paragraph 1.5 has been amended to make it clear that the Code applies when an 
application is submitted in which you have an interest that would necessitate it going to 
committee. It has also been updated to reflect the issuing of a revised Probity in Planning 
document in December 2019. 
 
Council’s petition scheme 

27. This has been revised to enable submission of e-petitions provided the basic validation 
requirements are still met. The validation requirements have also been revised to be more 
conducive to the use of e-petitions. 
 
Other changes 

28. These include 
a. Updating Part 1 to include current Council Plan ambitions and Article 1 to change 

reference to Corporate Strategy to Council Plan in the Constitutional diagram. 
b. Updating Portfolio titles and areas of responsibility and post holders and related 

references throughout.  
c. Bringing the Joint Bodies list up to date (Part 3 Section 2) 
d. Additional wording to reflect possibility of urgent meetings (Part 4.2) 
e. Updating of legislation and guidance dates 

 
 

page 9



 
  

RECOMMENDATION 
29. That Council approves the Constitution including the amendments to it as shown in the draft 

and detailed in this report and thereby agree the Committee structure, their size and terms 
of reference and the scheme of delegations.   
 

PART B – Confirmation of the formal opposition (Recommendation 2) 
30. The newly adopted Constitution requires confirmation of the formal opposition at the 

Annual Meeting. COVID-19 has prevented the Annual Meeting but this meeting is to 
carry out the business that would have been carried out save for the elections / 
appointments that have already been dealt with by previous Extraordinary General 
Meetings. The Conservative Group, as the largest opposition party, are entitled to be 
recognised as the formal opposition. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

31. The Conservative Group is confirmed as the formal opposition. 
 

PART C - Allocation to different political groups of seats on overview, regulatory and other 
committees in accordance with the political balance of the council (Recommendations 3&4) 

 

Introduction 

32. The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (sections 15-17) has implications in 
respect of the representation of political groups on committees, sub-committees of the 
Council and on specified joint bodies. A political group is treated as constituted when 
there is delivered to the Chief Executive the requisite notice signed by two or more 
Members of the Council who wish to be treated as a political group. 
 

33. The Council is required at each annual meeting of the Council (or as soon as practicable 
afterwards and at such other times as detailed in regulations) to review the 
representation of political groups on committees, sub-committees and specified joint 
bodies. 
 

34. The Council must as soon as practicable after such review, determine the allocation to 
different political groups of seats to be filled by it. Appointments must then be made to 
give effect to political groups' wishes as to who is to be appointed to the seats to be 
allocated to each group. 
 

35. The Council decided (at Policy Committee minute number 29 of 10.10.90) that the review 
is carried out at each annual meeting (and at such other times as required by the 
relevant regulations) and a determination then be made as to the allocation to different 
political groups of seats to be filled by the Council. 
 

Scope of sections 15-16 of the 1989 Act 

36. The above provisions affect appointments to committees, sub-committees and some 
specified joint bodies. 
 

37. It is not a legal requirement for the political balance rules to apply to the Cabinet. The Leader 
appoints between 2 and 9 other Councillors to the Cabinet. In addition, the political balance 
rules are applied to some advisory panels/forums where possible but not to appointments to 
outside bodies. 
 

38. Further details are set out below but, broadly, allocations of seats on committees and 
sub-committees need to be in proportion to a political group's representation on the 

page 10



 
  

Council. For ordinary committees and sub-committees, the general rule is that Section 
15(4) and (5) provides for the following principles to apply as far as reasonably 
practicable:- 

(a)       All the seats on a committee/sub-committee or a joint body must not be 
allocated to the same political group. 

(b)       Any political group which has a majority on the full Council must be allocated the 
majority of seats on each committee, sub-committee and relevant joint body. 

(c)       Subject to the two principles in (a) and (b) above the number of seats, in total, for 
all the ordinary committees allocated to each political group must bear the same 
proportion to each group's proportion on the full Council. 

(d)       Subject to the three principles in (a) to (c) above, the number of seats on each 
committee, sub-committee and relevant joint body must be allocated to each 
political group in proportion to the political group's membership of the Council. 

 
A review of representation of political groups on committees and sub- committees 

(a)      Overview, regulatory and other committees 

39. The committee structure agreed by Council at its meeting on 29 April 2015 for the creation of 
separate Overview and Scrutiny Committees to replace the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is to be retained. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees plus the Housing 
Review Board will continue to utilise Task and Finish Forums as required. 
 

40. In 2020/21 the Overview Committee and Scrutiny Committee will meet when called in 
accordance with the Temporary Rules of Procedure (COVID-19) (adopted on 14th May 2020) 
or as may be determined by Council by way of subsequent decision. 
 

41. The minutes of the meetings of these Committees will be referred to the next available 
meeting of the Cabinet.  
 

42. Please refer to the Committee membership chart, and the list of Panels, Forum and Joint 
Bodies for details of all Committees, Sub Committees and Boards. 

2020/21 agreed committee structure: 

Overview Committee 13 seats 

Scrutiny Committee 15 seats 

Housing Review Board 5 Councillor seats 

 
plus the following Regulatory and other Committees: 

Audit & Governance  10 seats 

Planning 16 seats 

Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 5 seats 

Employment Appeals 7 seats 

Interviewing – Chief Officers 7 seats 

Licensing and Enforcement 15 seats 

Standards Committee 5 seats (inc Chairman of the Council) 

Strategic Planning Committee 15 seats 
 

43. The allocation of the total of 113 seats on all of these committees between 60 members 
of the council is as follows:- 
 
 

page 11



 
  

Democratic Alliance group 24 members 40% 46 seats 

Conservative group 20 members 33.33 % 38 seats 

Independent Progressive 
Group 

7 members 11.67% 13 seats 

The Independents 5 members 8.33% 10 seats 

Cranbrook Voice 3 members 5% 6 seats 

Independent 1 1.67% 0 seats 

Total seats 60 100 113 

 

44. The allocation of seats on overview/scrutiny, regulatory and other committees between 
political groups is as set out on Appendix 1 to this report. 
 

45. An apology needs to be given to Council by the Monitoring Officer for bringing a 
rebalance to Council after Cllr Millar left the Independent Group and sat simply as an 
Independent. Cllr Millar was allocated two seats but as he wasn’t part of a political 
group at that time he shouldn’t have been.  
 

(b)      Standards 

46. Changes in the structure of the Standards Committee were agreed in June 2012 in 
compliance with the requirements of the Localism Act. The Standards Committee is now 
politically balanced (4 Councillors plus the Chairman of the Council) with substitute Council 
Members for groups entitled to seats, 2 non-voting independent members and 2 non-voting 
parish council members. 
 

(c)      Licensing 

47. Under the Licensing Act 2003, it is a legal requirement for the Council’s Licensing and 
Enforcement Committee to have a membership of between 10 and 15. The Gambling Act 
2005 gave new responsibilities to this Committee in regulating gambling. 
 

48. It is proposed that the arrangement agreed in 2009 of having one Licensing Sub-Committee 
be continued. Membership of the Sub-Committee to comprise 3 members of the Licensing 
and Enforcement Committee, empanelled by the Strategic Lead – Governance and 
Licensing, as and when required. 

 

(d)   Planning Committee 

49. Membership is currently 16. Ward members who are also members of the Planning 
Committee have the right to vote in respect of applications within their own ward. Ward 
members who are not members of the Committee can speak on applications in their own 
ward but are not entitled to vote. The Committee may organise a site inspection if Members 
feel that a site needs to be viewed before a decision can be made. 
 
Determining the allocation to different political groups of seats to be filled and 
appointments to give effect to groups' wishes 
 

50. By virtue of Section 16(1) of the 1989 Act, the Council must as soon as practicable, after 
determining the allocation to different political groups of seats to be filled by it on any 
body, to which Section 15 above applies, (or after a subsequent vacancy on such a 
body), make appointments to give effect to political groups' wishes as to who is to be 
appointed to the seats allocated to the group. 

page 12



 
  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

51. That the allocation to different political groups of seats to be filled by the Council be 
determined as follows in respect of overview, regulatory and other committees. 
 

 
Democratic Alliance Group 

 
24 members 40% 46 seats 

Conservative Group 
 

20 members 33.33% 38 seats 

Independent Progressive 
Group 

 

7 members 11.67% 13 seats 

The Independents  
 

5 members 8.33% 10 seats 

Cranbrook Voice 
 

3 members 5% 6 seats 

 
Independent 

 

 
1 

 
1.67% 

 
0 seats 

TOTALS 60 100 113 
 

52. That the allocation of seats on individual overview/scrutiny, regulatory and other committees 
be agreed as set out on Appendix 1 to this report 
 
 

PART D - Membership of the Standards Committee and Housing Review Board 
(Recommendation 5).  

 
53. The Standards Committee comprises the following membership;  

 

Council representatives: Chairman of the Council and four other members of the Council to 
be nominated and appointed. 

Substitute members: Three members of the Council to be nominated and appointed. 

Non-voting independent representatives: Martin Goscomb with the second representative 
position currently vacant* 

Non-voting parish/town council representatives: Bob Nelson (Broadhembury Parish 
Council) and Pauline Scott (Sidmouth Town Council). 

 

*Recruitment to replace Tim Swarbrick who resigned earlier this year will commence when 
it is possible to interview prospective candidates safely. 

 

For information - The Council’s non-voting appointed Independent Person (Alison Willan) is 
a consultee and not a member of the Standards Committee. The Monitoring Officer 
consults with an Independent Person when dealing with Code of Conduct complaints. Her 
original appointment in 2012 was for a term of 4 years, Members approved a second 4-year 
term in 2016 for the Independent Person so that her experience and knowledge could 
continue to benefit this Council and support its governance arrangements. In light of the 
current COVID-19 situation it is recommended that this appointment continue for a further 
year and that a replacement be sought for recommendation to Council at the Annual 
Meeting in 2021.  

page 13



 
  

 

 
54. The Housing Review Board comprises the following membership; 

Council representatives: Five members of the Council to be nominated and appointed. 

Tenant and/or Leaseholder representatives (5) - to serve a further year on the Board: 
Peter Sullivan, Pat Gore, Cat Summers, Christine Morrison and Cindy Collier. 

Independent Community representatives (2) – to serve a further year on the Board: 
Christine Drew and with the second representative position currently vacant*. 

*Recruitment to fill the vacancy will commence when it is possible to interview prospective 
candidates safely. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

55. That the membership of the Standards Committee and Housing Review Board set out 
above is approved along with an extension of the appointment of the Independent Person 
for a further year. 

 

PART E - To agree the appointment of Councillors to Committees (Recommendation 6) 

56. The table containing the proposed appointments (as provided by the Group Leaders) is 
contained at Appendix 2.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

57. Members are asked to approve the appointments at Appendix 2. 

 

PART F – To appoint the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Committees (Recommendation 7) 
58. The table with the proposed appointments is contained at Appendix 3. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

59. Members are asked to approve the appointments at Appendix 3. 
 

page 14



MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES – SEATS AND PROPORTIONAL BALANCE 2020/21                     APPENDIX 1    

 

Number in Group 
% of Council 
membership 

15seats: 
Scrutiny  
 

13seats 
Overview 

5 seats: 
Housing 
Review 
Board 

15 seats 
Strategic 
Planning 

16 seats 
Planning 

10 seats 
Audit and 
Governance 

*5 seats 
Standards 

*7 seats 
Interviewing  
(Chief 
Officers)  

*5 seats  
Investigating 
and 
Disciplinary 
Committee 

*7 seats 
Employment 
Appeals 

15 seats 
Licensing & 
Enforcement  

113 
total 
seats 

24 Democratic 
Alliance Group 

(40%) 

6 5 2 6 7 4 2 3 2 3 6 

 
 

46 

20 Conservative 
Group 

(33.33%) 

5 4 2 5 5 3 2 2 2 3 5 

 
 

38 
 

7 Independent 
Progressive 
Group 

(11.67%) 

2 2 1 2 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 
13 

 

5 The 
Independents 

(8.33%) 

1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
10 

 

3 Cranbrook 
Voice 

(5%) 

1 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 6 

1 Independent 

(1.67%) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
NOTE: 
 
1. The Cabinet is not shown on the above table as it is not a legal requirement for the political balance rules to apply.   
 
* These committees have a substitute member for each political group allocated a seat or seats 

page 15



Appendix 2 

 

Membership of Committees 2020/21 

 

Members of Cabinet and 
Committees 2020/21 

Cabinet 
10 

Housing 
Company 

Sub 
5 

Scrutiny 
15 

Overview 
13 

Housing 
Review 
Board 

5 

Strategic 
Planning  

15 

Planning 
16 

Standards 
5  

 

Audit & 
Governance 

10 
 

Interviewing 
(Chief 

Officers) 
7 

Investigating 
and 

Disciplinary 
Committee 

5 

Employment 
Appeals 

7 

Licensing & 
Enforcement 

15 

Allen Mike              

Armstrong Megan          Substitute    

Arnott Paul Leader Chair        Chair    

Bailey Jess              

Barrow Dean              

Bickley Denise           Substitute   

Blakey Kevin              

Bloxham Kim              

Bond Susie              

Brown Colin              

Caygill Fred              

Chamberlain Sarah              

Chapman Maddy              

Chubb Iain              

Colman Andrew              

Davey Olly              

Dent Alan              

De Saram Bruce              

Faithfull Peter              

Gardner Cathy        Chair      

Gazzard Steve              

Hall Ian              

Hartnell Marcus              

Hawkins Sam              

Hayward Paul              

Hookway Nick              

Howe Mike          Substitute  Substitute  

Hughes Stuart              

Ingham Ben              

Jackson Sarah              

Jarvis Paul        Substitute      

Jeffery Luke            Substitute  

page 16



Appendix 2 

 

Membership of Committees 2020/21 

 

Members of Cabinet and 
Committees 2020/21 

Cabinet 
10 

Housing 
Company 

Sub 
5 

Scrutiny 
15 

Overview 
13 

Housing 
Review 
Board 

5 

Strategic 
Planning  

15 

Planning 
16 

Standards 
5  

 

Audit & 
Governance 

10 
 

Interviewing 
(Chief 

Officers) 
7 

Investigating 
and 

Disciplinary 
Committee 

5 

Employment 
Appeals 

7 

Licensing & 
Enforcement 

15 

Johns Vicky              

Jung Geoff              

Key David              

King Fabian              

Ledger Dan              

Loudoun John              

Manley Dawn          Substitute    

McCollum Tony              

McLauchlan Kathy              

Millar Paul              

Moulding Andrew        Chairman Substitute   Substitute   

Parr Helen              

Pepper Christopher              

Pook Geoff           Substitute   

Pratt Geoff              

Ranger Val              

Rixson Marianne              

Rowland Jack              

Rylance Eleanor               

Skinner Philip              

Taylor Brenda        Substitute      

Thomas Ian          Substitute    

Twiss Phil              

Whibley Joe              

Woodward Tony              

Wragg Eileen Deputy       ???  Vice Chair Chair   

Wright Chris            Substitute  

Wright Tom              

 
Portfolio Holders: Strategic Planning, Corporate Services & COVID-19 Response & Recovery, Economy & Assets, Coast Country & Environment, 
Democracy & Transparency, Finance, Sustainable Homes & Communities and Climate Action.  

page 17



 

APPENDIX 3   
 
Nominations for Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen 2020/2021 
 
 

Committees Chairman Vice-Chairman 

Overview Committee 

 

Nick Hookway Vicky Johns 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

Colin Brown Val Ranger 

Housing Review Board Tony McCollum To be appointed by Housing 
Review Board  

 

Strategic Planning Committee 

 

Dan Ledger Olly Davey  

Planning 

 

Eileen Wragg Sarah Chamberlain 

Audit & Governance 

 

Sam Hawkins Paul Millar 

Standards 

 

Chairman of the Council No appointment required 

Interviewing (Chief Officers) 

 

Leader Deputy Leader 

Investigating and Disciplinary 
Committee 

 

Deputy Leader No appointment required 

Employment Appeals 

 

Fabian King No appointment required 

Licensing and Enforcement 

 

Joe Whibley  Kim Bloxham 

 

 
 

 

page 18


	Agenda
	4 Governance Arrangements and committee appointments for the remainder of the Civic Year (2020/21)
	App 1 Committee seats & proportional balance
	App 2 Membership of Committees Chart
	App 3 Appointment of Chairs & Vice Chairs 2020 21


